
OPERATIONS & ADMINISTRATIVE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA 

Called by:  Keith McDonald, Chairman DATE: THURSDAY, JUNE 20, 2024     
Members:  Paul Arena, John Butitta, 
Valerie Hanserd, Joe Hoffman,  

TIME: 5:30 PM 

Jaime Salgado, Michael Thompson LOCATION:   ROOM 303 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BLDG 
404 ELM STREET 
ROCKFORD, IL 61101 

AGENDA: 

A. Call to Order

B. Roll Call

C. Approval of Minutes – June 6, 2024

D. Public Comment – This is the time we invite the public to address the Operations and 
Administrative Committee with issues and concerns.  We ask you to limit your comments 
to three minutes.  Personal attacks or inappropriate language of any sort will not be 
tolerated.  We will allow a maximum of five speakers on a first come basis with sign up at 
the meeting.  Speakers may not address zoning matters which are pending before the ZBA, 
the Zoning Committee or the County Board.  Personnel matters or pending or threatened 
litigation may not be addressed in open session.  An individual may speak a maximum of 
three times per calendar year on the same topic.  This prohibition shall include the repetition 
of the same topic in a statement on what is purported to be a different topic.  After 
acknowledgement by the chair, please stand and state your name.  Thank you.

E. Resolution Awarding Lower-Level Roof Replacement at Juvenile Justice Center
Using CIP PSST Funds
Cost: $107,814

F. Resolution Awarding Renewal for Onsite Wellness Clinic Services

G. Resolution Authorizing the Execution of an Industrial Building Lease by and between 
the County of Winnebago, Illinois and JMD Real Estate Holdings, LLC for the property 
located at 516 Green Street, Rockford, Illinois

H. Ordinance Amending Section 2-88 [Appointments to Commissions, Boards, Authorities, 
or Special Districts] of the Winnebago County Code relating to the Rules of Procedure of 
the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois

I. Future Agenda Items

J. Adjournment



 

 Page 1  
  

Winnebago County Board 
Operations and Administrative Committee Meeting 

County Administration Building 
404 Elm Street, Room 303 

Rockford, IL 61101 
 

Thursday, June 6, 2024 
5:30 PM 

 
Present: Others Present: 
Keith McDonald, Chairperson 
Paul Arena 
John Butitta 
Joe Hoffman 
Jaime Salgado 
Michael Thompson 
 
Absent: 
Valerie Hanserd, Vice Chairperson 
 

Patrick Thompson, County Administrator 
Steve Schultz, Chief Financial Officer 
Hope Edwards, Purchasing Director, (Staff Liaison) 
Rick Ciganek, Chief Deputy, WCSO 
Chris Dornbush, Chief Operating Officer 
Shawn Franks, Director, Facilities 
John Giliberti, State’s Attorney Office 
Charlotte Hoss, State’s Attorney Office 
Debbie Jarvis, Director of Court Services, 17th Judicial Circuit 
Dan Magers, Chief Information Officer, IT Department 
John Sweeney, County Board Member 
Dave Castegnaro, Family Law Attorney 
Benjamin Funcke, Heartland Business Systems (via Zoom) 
Michael Lane, Bar Owner 
Ray Montelongo, Montel Technologies 
 

AGENDA:   
A. Call to Order  
B. Roll Call 
C. Approval of Minutes – May 16, 2024 
D. Public Comment – This is the time we invite the public to address the Operations and 

Administrative Committee with issues and concerns.  We ask you to limit your 
comments to three minutes.  Personal attacks or inappropriate language of any sort 
will not be tolerated.  We will allow a maximum of five speakers on a first come basis 
with sign up at the meeting.  Speakers may not address zoning matters which are 
pending before the ZBA, the Zoning Committee or the County Board.  Personnel 
matters or pending or threatened litigation may not be addressed in open session.  An 
individual may speak a maximum of three times per calendar year on the same topic. 
This prohibition shall include the repetition of the same topic in a statement on what 
is purported to be a different topic.  After acknowledgement by the chair, please stand 
and state your name.  Thank you.  

E. Resolution Awarding Purchase of Detective Squad Vehicle for Sheriff’s Office using 
CIP 24 Funds 
Cost: $49,153 

F. Resolution Awarding Purchase of Crime Scene Vehicle for Sheriff’s Office using 
CIP 24 Funds 
Cost: $49,298  

G. Ordinance Amending Chapter 6 of the Winnebago County Code to Give the 
Winnebago County Liquor Control Commission the Authority to Grant Exemptions 



 

 Page 2  
  

to Section 5/6-11 of the Liquor Control Act of 1934 which prohibits the Sale of 
Alcoholic Liquor Near Churches, Schools and Hospitals 

H. Discussion – Juvenile Detention Center – Space Study Analysis Update 
I. Discussion – Countywide Security Cameras & Integrator System 
J. Future Agenda Items 
K. Adjournment 

 
Chairperson McDonald called the meeting to order at 5:30 PM. 
 
Roll Call 
Chairperson Keith McDonald yes, Paul Arena yes, John Butitta yes, Joe Hoffman yes, 
Jaime Salgado yes, Michael Thompson yes. 
 
Approval of Minutes – May 16, 2024 
Motion: Mr. Thompson.  Second: Mr. Hoffman. 
Chairperson McDonald called for any discussion. 
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Public Comment 
Chairperson McDonald read the Public Comment Section of the Agenda.  
 
Public Speaker: Ray Montelongo, Montel Technologies 
Mr. Montelongo gave a brief introduction on Montel Technologies. 
Chairperson McDonald thanked the speaker.  
 
Resolution Awarding Purchase of Detective Squad Vehicle for Sheriff’s Office using CIP 
24 Funds 
Cost: $49,153 
Motion: Chairperson McDonald.  Second: Mr. Salgado. 
Chairperson McDonald called for any discussion. 

• Discussion followed. 
Motion passed by a unanimous voice vote.   
 
Resolution Awarding Purchase of Crime Scene Vehicle for Sheriff’s Office using CIP 24 
Funds 
Cost: $49,298 
Motion: Chairperson McDonald.  Second: Mr. Butitta. 
Chairperson McDonald called for any discussion. 

• Discussion followed. 
Motion passed by a unanimous voice vote.   
 
Ordinance Amending Chapter 6 of the Winnebago County Code to Give the Winnebago 
County Liquor Control Commission the Authority to Grant Exemptions to Section 5/6-
11 of the Liquor Control Act of 1934 which prohibits the Sale of Alcoholic Liquor Near 
Churches, Schools and Hospitals 
Motion: Chairperson McDonald.  Second: Mr. Salgado. 
Chairperson McDonald called for any discussion. 

• Discussion followed. 
Motion passed by a unanimous voice vote.   
 



 

 Page 3  
  

Discussion – Juvenile Detention Center – Space Study Analysis Update 
• Discussion followed. 

 
Discussion – Countywide Security Cameras & Integrator System 
Chairperson McDonald noted one of the bidders is present.  Questions may be posed to the 
representative from Heartland Business Systems attending via Zoom, who has no financial 
gain in the project.  Committee members reviewed the packet and reference materials. 
Chairperson McDonald called for any discussion. 

• Discussion followed.   
• Agreement reached to have the top three vendors make presentations at a future 

committee meeting. 
 
Future Agenda Items 

• None reported. 
 

Motion to Adjourn   
Chairperson McDonald called for a motion to adjourn the meeting. 
Motion: Mr. Thompson.   Second: Mr. Salgado. 
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Nancy Bleile 
Administrative Assistant 



 
 
 

 
Resolution Executive Summary 

For ARPA or CIP Projects 
      
 
Prepared By:  Purchasing Department for Facilities     
Committee Name: Operations & Administrative Committee    
Committee Date: June 20, 2024  
Board Date:  June 27, 2024     
Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding Lower-Level Roof Replacement at Juvenile Justice 

Center Using CIP PSST Funds   
 

Budget Information 
Budgeted? YES                Amount Budgeted?  $100,000             
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?                                           
If ARPA or CIP funded, original Board approved amount?   $100,000                                 
Over or Under approved amount? OVER         By: $7,814     
Reason for ARPA or CIP increase?  N/A 
If ARPA funded, was it approved by Baker Tilly?  N/A             
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 82200-46320-C2324    Descriptor: CIP PSST 23  
Budget Impact? $107,814 

 

Background Information: The roof at the Juvenile Justice Center is approximately 20+ years old 
and based on its current condition. The lower-level roof was submitted to be replaced using CIP 23 
PSST funds. The upper-level roof is on the list for future replacement.  
 
In May of 2024, the Purchasing Department went out for Re-Bid #24B-2346 to replace a portion of 
the lower-level roof at the Juvenile Justice Center.  This project yielded (6) bids with the lowest bid 
received from Distinctive Roofing, Inc. (See Resolution Exhibit A). 
 
The Invitation to Bid was emailed to 34 potential bidders and local suppliers. It was also publicly 
advertised in the RRStar and on the County website.  The Pre-Bid Meeting was optional due to 
the close timing of the re-bid however, between both meetings we had 18 attendees 
representing 9 companies.  
 
Recommended By:  Facilities Department  
 
Follow-Up Steps: Purchasing will prepare the Purchase Order to Distinctive Roofing, Inc. for 
$107,814. 



County Board Meeting: June 27, 2024 
 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:  Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2024 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING LOWER-LEVEL ROOF REPLACEMENT AT JUVENILE JUSTICE CENTER USING CIP PSST FUNDS 
 
WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 

Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use. All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $30,000 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
 (g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Juvenile Justice Center building is in need of replacing the lower-level roof; 
and, 
 

WHEREAS, the County went out for Bid #24B-2346 Roof Replacement at Juvenile 
Justice Center; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the Bid Tab (Resolution Exhibit A) for the 
aforementioned purchase and recommends awarding to:  

 

DISTINCTIVE ROOFING, INC. 
1555 NEW MILFORD SCHOOL ROAD 

ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS 61109 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the Director of Purchasing is authorized to issue a County 
Purchase Order, on behalf of the County of Winnebago, in the amount of $107,814 to 
Distinctive Roofing, Inc. 1555 New Milford School Road, Rockford, IL 61109. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Court Services, 
Juvenile Detention Center Administrator, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, Facilities 
Director, County Board Office and County Auditor.   

                                 



Respectfully Submitted, 
          OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



VENDOR NAME Distinctive Roofing, Inc. Roofing Systems, Inc. BP Roofing Solutions Sterling Commercial 

Roofing Inc.

HC Anderson Roofing McDermaid Roofing

BASE PRICE TO COMPLETE PROJECT $107,814 $145,500 $180,800 $125,500 $131,477 $109,750

PRICE PER SQ FT OF INSULATION $3.50 $4 $3 $10.50 $4 $4.45

LEAD DAYS FOR MATERIALS 30 days 14 days 14 days 30 days 30 days 21 days

NUMBER OF DAYS TO COMPLETE WORK 15 days 21 days 9 days 15 days 15 days 30 days

BID TAB
24B-2346 ROOF REPLACEMENT (LOWER LEVEL) AT JUVENILE JUSTICE CENTER

BID OPENING - JUNE 4, 2024 @ 10:00 AM

Winnebago County Purchasing Department

404 Elm St, Rm 202, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov

Phone: (815) 319- 4380 | Email: purchasing@purchasing.wincoil.gov

Resolution Exhibit A



 
 
 

 
Resolution Executive Summary 

 
    
 
Prepared By:  Purchasing Department   
Committee Name: Operations and Administrative Committee   
Committee Date: June 20, 2024  
Board Date:  June 27, 2024     
Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding Renewal for Onsite Wellness Clinic Services  
- 

Budget Information 
Budgeted? NO               Amount Budgeted?   N/A 
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?    
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 48500 - 43175    Descriptor: Group Health Insurance Fund 

 

Background: 
In February of 2019, the Purchasing Department went out for RFP #19P-2172 for Onsite 
Wellness Clinic Services at 526 West State Street.  The five (5) year contract was awarded to 
SwedishAmerican Hospital. The clinic provides Acute Care and Wellness Services for 
employees/spouses and dependents covered under the Winnebago County group insurance 
plan.  The Clinic also provides the County’s Occupational Medicine and Pre-Employment Testing.  
The clinic has proven to be very beneficial to County employees and their families and has been 
utilized on a regular basis (See Resolution Exhibit B – previous year statistics). The current 
contract is set to expire on June 30th, 2024.   
 
The County of Winnebago has been very pleased with the services that SwedishAmerican has 
provided over the past several years and would now like to exercise a renewal option to extend 
the contract for one (1) additional year at the end of which, the County will reevaluate the 
Wellness Center needs to go out for proposal for a new contract. 
 
Prior to the renewal, the County was paying $350,432.38.  Per the new agreement (See 
Resolution Exhibit A – First Amendment), there will be an added part-time nurse cost, as well 
as a 3% increase, resulting in the annual fee in the amount of $407,295.35. 
 
Contract Period: 
The new agreement (First Amendment) will be for one year for the timeframe of July 1, 2024 
through June 30, 2025. 
 
Follow-Up:  Purchasing Department will route for signatures the SwedishAmerican Health 
System renewal agreement with the County of Winnebago.  
 
 



                                                                                                                                County Board Meeting:  
June 27, 2024 

 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 
   

2024 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING RENEWAL FOR ONSITE WELLNESS CLINIC SERVICES  
 
 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use.  All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $30,000 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
(g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and, 

 

WHEREAS, competitive Request for Proposals responses were received by the Purchasing 
Department on February 12, 2019 for a five (5) year contract for the following; 

ONSITE WELLNESS CLINIC SERVICES   RFP # 19P-2172 

 

WHEREAS, SwedishAmerican Hospital was awarded the five (5) year contract for Onsite 
Wellness Clinic Services and the County would now like to exercise a renewal option to extend 
the contract for one (1) additional year; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the new agreement for the contract extension for the 
aforementioned project and recommends awarding the extension; and,  

 
 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the County Board Chairman is authorized to execute a one (1) year contract extension 
agreement for services with SWEDISHAMERICAN HEALTH SYSTEM, 1313 EAST STATE STREET, 
ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS 61104, in substantially the same form as that attached hereto as Resolution 
Exhibit A- First Amendment.  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare 
and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Human Resources Director, Director of 
Purchasing, Board Office, Finance Director and County Auditor. 
 



 
             Respectfully Submitted, 

                        OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A

1 

FIRST AMENDMENT 

to 

EMPLOYEE HEALTH AND WELLNESS SERVICES AGREEMENT 

between 

SWEDISHAMERICAN HOSPITAL 

and 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY 

This First Amendment to the Employee Health and Wellness Services Agreement 

(“First Amendment”) between SWEDISHAMERICAN HOSPITAL, an Illinois not for profit 

corporation (“SwedishAmerican”) and WINNEBAGO COUNTY, an Illinois body politic, is 

effective as of July 1, 2024 (“Effective Date”). SwedishAmerican and Winnebago County may be 

referred to herein individually as a “Party” or collectively as the “Parties.”  

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, SwedishAmerican and Winnebago County entered into the Employee 

Health and Wellness Services Agreement (“Agreement”) effective July 1, 2021, for a term of 

three (3) years, with up to three (3) additional one (1)- year renewals; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to renew the Agreement for a term of one (1) year and to 

amend the Agreement to update the annual fee in Exhibit C (“Fees”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Term Renewal.  In accordance with Section 9(a) of the Agreement, the Parties agree to

extend the Agreement for an additional one (1)-year Term, for the period of July 1, 2024,

through June 30, 2025.

2. Exhibit C. The Parties agree to delete paragraph 1(a) of Exhibit C and replace it with the

following paragraph:

“(a) An annual fee in the amount of $407,295.35, billed by SwedishAmerican in equal

monthly installments; subject to increase at the end of each Term Year.  The estimated

increase will be three percent (3%) per year.”

3. Full Force and Effect. Except as expressly modified by this First Amendment, all other

terms and conditions of the Agreement remain in full force and effect.

4. Counterparts.  This First Amendment may be executed in several counterparts, each of

which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the

same First Amendment.

SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE 



 

2 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this First Amendment to be effective as 

of the Effective Date. 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY, SWEDISHAMERICAN HOSPITAL, 

an Illinois body politic an Illinois not for profit corporation 

By: By: 

Travis Andersen 

Its: Chief Executive Officer 

Date: Date: 

Attest: 

By: 

Its: 

Date: 



                                                                                                                                 RESOLUTION EXHIBIT B 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
Resolution Executive Summary 

   Committee Date: Thursday, June 20, 2024 
   Committee: Operations & Administrative 
   Prepared By: Chris Dornbush 

Board Office  
404 Elm Street, Rm 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov 

Phone: (815) 319- 4225 | E-mail: boardoffice@admin.wincoil.gov       

 
Document Title:  Resolution Authorizing the Execution of an Industrial Building Lease by and 

between the County of Winnebago, Illinois and JMD Real Estate Holdings, 
LLC for the property located at 516 Green Street, Rockford, Illinois 

 
Board Meeting Date: Thursday, June 27, 2024  
Budget Information: 
 

Budgeted? No                                                    Amount Budgeted? No ($2,500 per month) 
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source? NA 
If ARPA or CIP funded, original Board approved amount?   NA 
Over or Under approved amount? NA                                                   By: $                                            
If ARPA funded, was it approved by Baker Tilly?  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes:                                          Descriptor:  
Budget Impact?  $2,500 / month 

 

 
Background Information:  

This lease agreement is for 516 Green Street, specifically to be able to utilize the garage 
space on the south half of the building as well as the surrounding parking lot for $2,500 per 
month ($30,000 annually). A potential second lease of the north half of the building is also being 
discussed for a temporary location for the Law Enforcement Training Facility (currently located 
at 720 Chestnut Street), which is anticipated to also be $2,500 per month ($30,000 annually). 
The County has a need for additional space for several departments; Highway (store some of 
their equipment inside to prolong its life), Sheriff (impounded vehicles & equipment, which 
would be relocated from 720 Chestnut Street), County Clerk (utilize space & docking doors for 
their election equipment, due to the Public Safety Building (PSB) being renovated, which is 
where it’s currently being stored). Some factors that are affecting the timeline would be that the 
County needs to have everything vacated by August of the 720 Chestnut Street building that was 
sold to Rock Valley College in March of 2023 and the PSB renovation should begin by the end 
of 2024, which stored the election equipment on the 1st floor.  
 
Recommendation:  

Administration supports the Lease of space to assist other Offices who are needing space 
for operations. 
 
Contract/Agreement:  
Yes 
Legal Review:   
Yes 
Follow-Up: 
Staff can follow-up with any questions that the Committee or entire Board has. 

http://www.wincoil.gov/
mailto:boardoffice@admin.wincoil.gov


Sponsored By:  Keith McDonald                                                  County Board Meeting: June 27, 2024 

 

RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

2024 CR _______ 
 

SUBMITTED BY:  OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN INDUSTRIAL BUILDING 
LEASE BY AND BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS AND JMD 
REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS, LLC FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 516 GREEN 

STREET, ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS 
 

 
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois (County) is seeking to enter into a 

Industrial Building Lease (Lease) with JMD Real Estate Holdings, LLC (JMD) to assist with the 
space needs of several County Departments; and 

 
WHEREAS, JMD has a property located at 516 Green Street, Rockford, Illinois that is 

available to lease and has adequate space to assist with the needs of the Sheriff’s Office, County 
Highway Department, and the County Clerk’s Office; and  

 
WHEREAS, the initial lease for the Building – Garage Area (south half of the building) 

and the Premises – Parking Lot term will be for five (5) years with a cost of $2,500 per month for 
the first year and then increase each year thereafter based upon the agreed amount within the 
Lease, as EXHIBIT A; and 
 

WHEREAS, if additional space is needed, the Lease references the option to expand the 
square footage to the north half of the building, “Expansion Space” as referenced in the Lease; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, having conferred with the County Administration, has determined 
that it is in the best interests of the County to lease said property from JMD.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is hereby authorized and 
directed to, on behalf of the County of Winnebago, Illinois to execute all the documents necessary 
and approved by the Winnebago County State’s Attorney’s Office to lease the building and 
premises located at 516 Green Street, Rockford, Illinois in substantially the same form as attached 
hereto as, EXHIBIT A and referenced as, “Industrial Building Lease”.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 

immediately upon its adoption. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 

prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Administrator, County Finance 
Director, County Purchasing Director, County Chief Operating Officer, and County Auditor. 



 
[ 2 of 2 ] 

 

         Respectfully submitted, 
           OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
   

Keith McDonald, Chair  Keith McDonald, Chair 
   

Valerie Hanserd, Vice Chair  Valerie Hanserd, Vice Chair 
   

Paul Arena  Paul Arena 
   

John Butitta  John Butitta 
   

Joe Hoffman  Joe Hoffman 
   

Jaime Salgado  Jaime Salgado 
   

Michael Thompson  Michael Thompson 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County  
of Winnebago, Illinois this _____ day of _________________, 2024. 
 
 
ATTEST: 

  

  Joseph V. Chiarelli, Chairman of the County 
Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

Lori Gummow, Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

  

 





2/8/24, 3:26 PM Parcel Summary

https://agis.wingis.org/WebApps/Summary/Winnebago.php?pin=1122481002 1/2

Parcel Summary

516 GREEN ST
Pin Alt.Pin Property Size

1122481002 202D444A Sq. Feet: 108701 | Acres: 2.50

Owner Name and Address

MAGGIO, MARTIN

4752 BAXTER RD

ROCKFORD, IL 61109

Taxpayer Name and Address

MAGGIO, MARTIN

4752 BAXTER RD

ROCKFORD, IL 61109

Legal Description
WEST ROCKFORD ALL LTS 1 THRU 3 & ALL LTS 10 THRU 12 & N1/3 LTS 4 THRU 9 & ALL VAC ALLEYS ADJ TO SAID LTS BLK
35 & ROBERTSONS SUB OF PT BLKS 21-22-35 & 36 WEST ROCKFORD (EXC PT TO CITY BY 02-61498) ALL LTS 1 THRU 15 &
ALL VAC ALLEYS ADJ TO SAID LTS BLK 35

Zoning District: C4

+
−



2/8/24, 3:26 PM Parcel Summary

https://agis.wingis.org/WebApps/Summary/Winnebago.php?pin=1122481002 2/2

SCHOOLDIST : Rockford School Dist #205
GRADESCHOOL :

Flood Zone Type In/Out
X F

Property Use Code Description
0081 Ind Land + Improve

Township Assessor
ROCKFORD Ken Crowley

Sales History
Date Type Amount Doc. No

Year Fair Market Value Total Tax Bill Code
2022 286830.00 10922.60 001

Current Exemptions



Paid on 
06/02/2023

202D444A 11-22-481-002

4752 BAXTER RD
MAGGIO MARTIN

78380

1

*$RE11224810021$*
Property Code

202D444A 11-22-481-002

Parcel ID

Paid on 
06/02/2023

ROCKFORD IL  61109

Phone: (_____) ______ - ________

Change of Address Form

New Name / Address

Date: _____/_____/_______

$0.0006/02/2023

TOTAL TAX DUE:

- 2022 Parcel ID: 11-22-481-002

  Taxing Body Current TaxCurrent RatePrior TaxPrior Rate

627.040.6559728.050.7054WINNEBAGO COUNTY
173.420.1814204.150.1978- PENSION

91.870.0961102.490.0993FOREST PRESERVE
3.060.00324.950.0048- PENSION

102.480.1072121.070.1173ROCKFORD TOWNSHIP
1,211.821.26761,431.831.3873ROCKFORD CITY
1,137.551.18991,288.891.2488- PENSION

898.740.9401958.090.9283ROCKFORD PARK DISTRICT
0.000.000047.070.0456- PENSION

152.290.1593178.660.1731FOUR RIVERS SANITATION AUTHO
359.460.3760423.470.4103ROCKFORD CITY LIBRARY
76.480.080083.710.0811GREATER RKFD AIRPORT
12.050.012614.860.0144- PENSION

5,314.505.55916,154.515.9631ROCKFORD SCHOOL DIST 205
194.450.2034311.180.3015- PENSION

449.420.4701471.050.4564COMMUNITY COLLEGE  511
5.830.00610.000.0000- PENSION

112.140.1173125.710.1218ROCKFORD TWSP ROAD

Totals: 12.2563 12,649.74 11.4253 10,922.60

Township Assessor Phone Number: 815-965-0300
$10,922.60

Fair Market Value:

286,830

Location of

516 GREEN ST Property:

2

09/08/2023 $0.00

Property Code

202D444A

*$RE11224810022$*
Parcel ID

11-22-481-002

x
Board of Review Equalized Value =
Home Improvement Exemption -
Disabled Vet Adapted Housing Exemption -
Department of Revenue Assessed Value =
State Multiplier for Winn Cnty x
Revised Equalized Value =
Senior Freeze Exemption -
FAF/VAF Exemption -

-
-
-

General Homestead Exemption

95,600
0
0

95,600
1.0000
95,600

0
0
0

Board of Review Assessed Value 95,600
Township Equalization factor 1.0000

0Senior Citizen (over 65) Exemption
Disabled Person / Disabled Vet Exemption 0

-Returning Veteran Exemption 0

+
-
=
x
=

Non AD Valorem Tax 0.00
Abatements 0
Calculated Tax $10,922.59
Tax Rate for Tax Code 001 11.4253
Taxable Value 95,600

    Formula for Tax Calculation

MAGGIO MARTIN
4752 BAXTER RD
ROCKFORD IL  61109

4752 BAXTER RD

ROCKFORD IL  61109

MAGGIO MARTIN

THIS IS THE ONLY NOTICE YOU WILL
RECEIVE FOR BOTH INSTALLMENTS.

WINNEBAGO COUNTY TREASURER AND COLLECTOR Ph. No. (815) 319-4400 2022

WEST ROCKFORD ALL LTS 1 THRU 3 & ALL LTS 10 THRU 12 & N

Reason for Change Signature

 ABBREVIATED LEGAL DESCRIPTION



2/27/24, 2:19 PM Rockford Township

https://search.rockfordtownshipassessor.net/parcelsearch/sd/rt/assessordb/PropertyDetail.aspx?pn=1122481002 1/3

ROCKFORD TOWNSHIP PROPERTY INFORMATION

Property Aerial Values & Exemptions Tax Bills

Property Location

Parcel Number:
11-22-481-002
Property Code:
202D444A
Address:
516 GREEN ST
Rockford, IL 61102
Taxpayer:
MAGGIO MARTIN
4752 BAXTER RD
ROCKFORD, IL 61109

Legal Description

WEST ROCKFORD ALL LTS 1 THRU 3 & ALL
LTS 10 THRU 12 & N1/3 LTS 4 THRU 9 & ALL
VAC ALLEYS ADJ TO SAID LTS BLK 35 &
ROBERTSONS SUB OF PT BLKS 21-22-35 & 36
WEST ROCKFORD (EXC PT TO CITY BY 02-
61498) ALL LTS 1 THRU 15 & ALL VAC ALLEYS
ADJ TO SAID LTS BLK 35

SEC / TWP / [LOT] / RNG [BLK] / ACRES
000  000  035  0.00

Improvement Information

NBHD:
83889
Class:
INDUSTRIAL
Land Use:
IMPROVED INDUSTRIAL
Building Name:
PHASE
Zoning:
C4
Year Built:
1918
Exterior Wall Height:
18
Exterior Walls:
BRICK/STONE
Gross Building SF:
55,763
Land SF:
108,701



2/27/24, 2:19 PM Rockford Township

https://search.rockfordtownshipassessor.net/parcelsearch/sd/rt/assessordb/PropertyDetail.aspx?pn=1122481002 2/3

Sketch

Building Permits

Pick-Up Year BP Amount Purpose

2021 4,200.00 Replace (2) Heaters

2006 582,709.00 REMODEL PHASE WAVE

2005 4,500.00 DEMO STORAGE BLDG

2005 0.00 INTERIOR DEMO PHASE WAVE

2000 119,000.00 REMODEL

Sales History



2/27/24, 2:19 PM Rockford Township

https://search.rockfordtownshipassessor.net/parcelsearch/sd/rt/assessordb/PropertyDetail.aspx?pn=1122481002 3/3

COPYRIGHT © 2017 ROCKFORD TOWNSHIP ASSESSOR'S OFFICE ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.

Notes

SDR BLACKTOP PARKING 50,553 SF VACANT SINCE 2002; SMALL STORAGE BLDG
DEMOLISHED AS OF 7/28/04; 2020 REASSESSMENT; 2019 BP DONE FOR 1/2021-NO AV; 2022
REASSESSMENT

No recent Sales on file

 

Information on this site was derived from data which was compiled by the Rockford Township Assessor's office solely for the governmental purpose
of property assessment. This information should not be relied upon by anyone as a determination of ownership of property or market value. No
warranties, expressed or implied, are provided for the accuracy of data herein, its use, or its interpretation.

Although it is periodically updated, this information may not reflect the data currently on file in the Assessor's office. The assessed values may NOT
be certified values and therefore may be subject to change before being finalized for ad valorem assessment purposes.



 
 

   
    Ordinance Executive Summary 

 

  

 
Prepared By:   Lafakeria Vaughn 
Committee:   Operations and Administrative Committee 
Committee Date:  June 20, 2024 
Ordinance Title:   Ordinance Amending Section 2-88 [Appointments to Commissions, 

Boards, Authorities, or Special Districts] of the Winnebago County 
Code relating to the Rules of Procedure of the County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 

County Code:         N/A  
Board Meeting Date:    June 27, 2024 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    N/A                 Appropriation Amount:   N/A 
If not, explain funding source:    
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   N/A                        Budget Impact:  N/A 

 
Background Information: Pursuant to Section 2-88 of the Winnebago County Board’s Rules of 
Procedures, all appointments are required to lay over for a period of not less than 30 days. The 
Winnebago County Board desires to amend Section 2-88(b) to allow appointments to lay over to 
the next scheduled board meeting after they are introduced. 
 
Recommendation: Approval of Ordinance. 
 
Contract/Agreement: N/A 
 
Legal Review:  Reviewed by States Attorney’s Office. 
 
Follow-Up: N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 County Board Meeting: June 27, 2024 

 

 

ORDINANCE 

OF THE  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

2024 CO ____ 

 

SUBMITTED BY:  OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

SPONSORED BY:  KEITH MCDONALD  

 

ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 2-88 [APPOINTMENTS TO COMMISSIONS, 

BOARDS, AUTHORITIES, OR SPECIAL DISTRICTS] OF THE 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY CODE RELATING TO THE RULES OF PROCEDURE OF 

THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 2-82 of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances, 

amendments to the rules of order and rules of procedure may be amended at any regular 

meeting of the county board by the affirmative vote of three-fifths of the members present; 

and  

 

WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, desires to 

amend their Rules of Procedure, as currently contained in Division 4 of Chapter 2, Article 

II, Section 2-88 of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 2-88 (b) provides that “The board chairman shall submit to the 

members a listing of the recommended appointees on the agenda of a regular board meeting 

for the advice and consent of the board. All appointments shall be laid over for a period of 

not less than 30 days”; and   

 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board deems it necessary and appropriate to 

amend Section 2-88(b) to allow appointments to lay over to the next scheduled board 

meeting after they are introduced. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois, that Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 of the Winnebago 

County Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

Sec. 2-88. - Appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special 

districts.  

 

(a) The board chairman shall make all appointments to commissions, boards, 

authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the county board, or as 

otherwise provided by law. 

 



(b) The board chairman shall submit to the members a listing of the 

recommended appointees on the agenda of a regular board meeting for the advice and 

consent of the board. All appointments shall be laid over for a period of not less than 30 

days. All appointments shall lay over until the second board meeting after they are first 

introduced. 

 

(c) The chairman shall present a list of all county board appointees serving on 

commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts to board members within 30 days after 

the beginning of each board term. This list shall indicate the month and year of appointment, 

term of office, and compensation. 

 

(d) Appointments to fill vacancies on commissions, boards, authorities, or 

special districts shall be filled in the same manner as provided above and shall be for the 

balance of the unexpired term. 

 

(Res. No. 96-CR-253, 12-2-96; Ord. No. 2017-CO-035, 3-9-17; Ord. No. 2018-036, 

12-4-18; Ord. No. 2020-CO-085, Exh. A, 12-7-20; Ord. No. 2022-CO-098, Exh. A, 12-8-

22) 

 

 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 

herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be effective immediately 

upon passage. 

 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board shall provide a 

certified copy of this Ordinance upon its adoption to the County Board Chairman and the 

Chairs of the Republican and Democratic caucuses and shall direct that the Department of 

Information Technology take appropriate action to revise the Code of Ordinances on the 

County Website so as to be consistent with the terms of this Ordinance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



          Respectfully submitted, 

                                              OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

 

AGREE       DISAGREE 

 

 

________________________________    __________________________________ 

Keith McDonald, Chair             Keith McDonald, Chair                               

                             

_________________________________          _________________________________ 

Valerie Hanserd, Vice Chair       Valerie Hanserd, Vice Chair  

 

_________________________________          _________________________________ 

Paul Arena                 Paul Arena 

 

_________________________________           ________________________________ 

John Butitta              John Butitta   

 

_________________________________      ________________________________ 

Joe Hoffman                     Joe Hoffman 

 

_________________________________      _________________________________ 

Jaime Salgado                     Jaime Salgado 

 

__________________________________        __________________________________ 

Michael Thompson                    Michael Thompson 

   

 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the 

County of Winnebago, Illinois, this ______ day of ___________________, 2024.  

   

  

       _____________________________ 

       Joseph V. Chiarelli 

       Chairman of the County Board 

       of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Lori Gummow 

Clerk of the County Board 

of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

 



 County Board Meeting: June 27, 2024 

 

 

ORDINANCE 

OF THE  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

2024 CO ____ 

 

SUBMITTED BY:  OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

SPONSORED BY:  KEITH MCDONALD  

 

ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 2-88 [APPOINTMENTS TO COMMISSIONS, 

BOARDS, AUTHORITIES, OR SPECIAL DISTRICTS] OF THE 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY CODE RELATING TO THE RULES OF PROCEDURE OF 

THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 2-82 of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances, 

amendments to the rules of order and rules of procedure may be amended at any regular 

meeting of the county board by the affirmative vote of three-fifths of the members present; 

and  

 

WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, desires to 

amend their Rules of Procedure, as currently contained in Division 4 of Chapter 2, Article 

II, Section 2-88 of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 2-88 (b) provides that “The board chairman shall submit to the 

members a listing of the recommended appointees on the agenda of a regular board meeting 

for the advice and consent of the board. All appointments shall be laid over for a period of 

not less than 30 days”; and   

 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board deems it necessary and appropriate to 

amend Section 2-88(b) to allow appointments to lay over to the next scheduled board 

meeting after they are introduced. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois, that Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 of the Winnebago 

County Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

Sec. 2-88. - Appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special 

districts.  

 

(a) The board chairman shall make all appointments to commissions, boards, 

authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the county board, or as 

otherwise provided by law. 

 



(b) The board chairman shall submit to the members a listing of the 

recommended appointees on the agenda of a regular board meeting for the advice and 

consent of the board. All appointments shall lay over until the second board meeting after 

they are first introduced. 

 

(c) The chairman shall present a list of all county board appointees serving on 

commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts to board members within 30 days after 

the beginning of each board term. This list shall indicate the month and year of appointment, 

term of office, and compensation. 

 

(d) Appointments to fill vacancies on commissions, boards, authorities, or 

special districts shall be filled in the same manner as provided above and shall be for the 

balance of the unexpired term. 

 

(Res. No. 96-CR-253, 12-2-96; Ord. No. 2017-CO-035, 3-9-17; Ord. No. 2018-036, 

12-4-18; Ord. No. 2020-CO-085, Exh. A, 12-7-20; Ord. No. 2022-CO-098, Exh. A, 12-8-

22) 

 

 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 

herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be effective immediately 

upon passage. 

 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board shall provide a 

certified copy of this Ordinance upon its adoption to the County Board Chairman and the 

Chairs of the Republican and Democratic caucuses and shall direct that the Department of 

Information Technology take appropriate action to revise the Code of Ordinances on the 

County Website so as to be consistent with the terms of this Ordinance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  Respectfully submitted, 

  OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

AGREE   DISAGREE 

________________________________  __________________________________ 

Keith McDonald, Chair        Keith McDonald, Chair

_________________________________          _________________________________ 

Valerie Hanserd, Vice Chair      Valerie Hanserd, Vice Chair 

_________________________________          _________________________________ 

Paul Arena     Paul Arena 

_________________________________ ________________________________ 

John Butitta       John Butitta 

_________________________________      ________________________________ 

Joe Hoffman  Joe Hoffman 

_________________________________      _________________________________ 

Jaime Salgado  Jaime Salgado 

__________________________________        __________________________________ 

Michael Thompson Michael Thompson 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the 

County of Winnebago, Illinois, this ______ day of ___________________, 2024.  

_____________________________ 

Joseph V. Chiarelli 

Chairman of the County Board 

of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

ATTESTED BY: 

_____________________________ 

Lori Gummow 

Clerk of the County Board 

of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 


	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes - June 6, 2024
	Resolution Awarding Lower-Level Roof Replacement at Juvenile Justice Center Using CIP PSST Funds
	Resolution Awarding Renewal for Onsite Wellness Clinic Services
	Resolution Authorizing the Execution of an Industrial Building Lease by and between the County of Winnebago, Illinois and JMD Real Estate Holdings, LLC for the property located at 516 Green Street, Rockford, Illinois
	Ordinance Amending Section 2-88 [Appointments to Commissions, Boards, Authorities, or Special Districts] of the Winnebago County Code relating to the Rules of Procedure of the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois
	Future Agenda Items
	Adjournment



